



Edition 1.1 2024-07 CONSOLIDATED VERSION

# INTERNATIONAL STANDARD



Miniature fuses – Part 8: Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection

INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

ICS 29.120.50

ISBN 978-2-8322-9425-3

Warning! Make sure that you obtained this publication from an authorized distributor.

# CONTENTS

FC	FOREWORD						
IN	INTRODUCTION						
1	Scop	e	.7				
2	Norm	ative references	.7				
3	Term	s and definitions	.8				
4	Gene	eral requirements	10				
5		dard ratings					
6		ing					
		eral notes on tests					
7							
	7.1	Atmospheric conditions for testing					
	7.2	Type tests					
	7.3						
	7.3.1	-					
	7.3.2	·	12				
	7.5.5	protection	13				
	7.3.4	•					
	7.4	Nature of supply	13				
8	Dime	nsions and construction	13				
	8.1	Dimensions	13				
	8.2	Construction	14				
	8.3	Terminations	14				
	8.3.1	Through-hole mount fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	15				
	8.3.2	Surface mount fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	15				
	8.4	Alignment and configuration of terminations					
	8.5	Soldered joints	15				
	8.6	Solderability of terminations	16				
	8.7	Resistance to soldering heat	16				
9	Elect	rical requirements	16				
	9.1	Resistance value	16				
	9.2	Functioning characteristic at the minimum breaking dissipation	16				
	9.2.1	Functioning characteristic at an ambient temperature of <del>70 °C</del> 23 °C ± 1 °C	16				
	9.2.2	Test at elevated temperature	16				
	9.2.3	Test procedure	17				
	9.2.4	Presentation of results	17				
	9.3	Rated breaking capacity	17				
	9.3.1	Operating conditions	17				
	9.3.2	Criteria for satisfactory performance	18				
9.3.3		Insulation resistance	18				
	9.3.4	Dielectric strength	18				
	9.4	Endurance tests					
	9.5	Maximum sustained dissipation					
	9.6	Pulse tests					
	9.7	Temperature of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection					
	9.8	Operating overvoltage	19				

IEC 60127-8:2018+AMD1:2024 CSV	- 3 -	REDLINE VERSION
© IEC 2024		
Bibliography		

Figure 1 – Test board for through-hole mount fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	21
Figure 2 – Test board for surface mount fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	22
Figure 3 – Test fuse-base	24
Figure 4 – Bending jig for surface mount fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	24
Figure 5 – Test circuit for the tests according to 9.3	25
Table 1 – Creepage distances and clearances (absolute minimum values)	14
Table 2 – Test voltages for dielectric strength	18
Table 3 – Testing schedule for individual dissipation ratings	20

## INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

## MINIATURE FUSES -

#### Part 8: Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection

## FOREWORD

- 1) The International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) is a worldwide organization for standardization comprising all national electrotechnical committees (IEC National Committees). The object of IEC is to promote international co-operation on all questions concerning standardization in the electrical and electronic fields. To this end and in addition to other activities, IEC publishes International Standards, Technical Specifications, Technical Reports, Publicly Available Specifications (PAS) and Guides (hereafter referred to as "IEC Publication(s)"). Their preparation is entrusted to technical committees; any IEC National Committee interested in the subject dealt with may participate in this preparatory work. International, governmental and non-governmental organizations liaising with the IEC also participate in this preparation. IEC collaborates closely with the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) in accordance with conditions determined by agreement between the two organizations.
- 2) The formal decisions or agreements of IEC on technical matters express, as nearly as possible, an international consensus of opinion on the relevant subjects since each technical committee has representation from all interested IEC National Committees.
- 3) IEC Publications have the form of recommendations for international use and are accepted by IEC National Committees in that sense. While all reasonable efforts are made to ensure that the technical content of IEC Publications is accurate, IEC cannot be held responsible for the way in which they are used or for any misinterpretation by any end user.
- 4) In order to promote international uniformity, IEC National Committees undertake to apply IEC Publications transparently to the maximum extent possible in their national and regional publications. Any divergence between any IEC Publication and the corresponding national or regional publication shall be clearly indicated in the latter.
- 5) IEC itself does not provide any attestation of conformity. Independent certification bodies provide conformity assessment services and, in some areas, access to IEC marks of conformity. IEC is not responsible for any services carried out by independent certification bodies.
- 6) All users should ensure that they have the latest edition of this publication.
- 7) No liability shall attach to IEC or its directors, employees, servants or agents including individual experts and members of its technical committees and IEC National Committees for any personal injury, property damage or other damage of any nature whatsoever, whether direct or indirect, or for costs (including legal fees) and expenses arising out of the publication, use of, or reliance upon, this IEC Publication or any other IEC Publications.
- 8) Attention is drawn to the Normative references cited in this publication. Use of the referenced publications is indispensable for the correct application of this publication.
- 9) IEC draws attention to the possibility that the implementation of this document may involve the use of (a) patent(s). IEC takes no position concerning the evidence, validity or applicability of any claimed patent rights in respect thereof. As of the date of publication of this document, IEC had not received notice of (a) patent(s), which may be required to implement this document. However, implementers are cautioned that this may not represent the latest information, which may be obtained from the patent database available at https://patents.iec.ch or www.iso.org/patents. IEC shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights.

This consolidated version of the official IEC Standard and its amendment has been prepared for user convenience.

IEC 60127-8 edition 1.1 contains the first edition (2018-06) [documents 32C/542/FDIS and 32C/546/RVD] and its amendment 1 (2024-07) [documents 32C/638/FDIS and 32C/642/RVD].

In this Redline version, a vertical line in the margin shows where the technical content is modified by amendment 1. Additions are in green text, deletions are in strikethrough red text. A separate Final version with all changes accepted is available in this publication. International Standard IEC 60127-8 has been prepared by subcommittee SC 32C: Miniature fuses, of IEC technical committee 32: Fuses

- 5 -

This first edition of IEC 60127-8 cancels and replaces IEC PAS 60127-8:2014.

This international standard is to be used in conjunction with IEC 60127-1.

This document has been drafted in accordance with the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2.

A list of all parts in the IEC 60127 series, published under the general title *Miniature fuses*, can be found on the IEC website.

The committee has decided that the contents of this document and its amendment will remain unchanged until the stability date indicated on the IEC website under webstore.iec.ch in the data related to the specific document. At this date, the document will be

- reconfirmed,
- withdrawn, or
- revised.

IMPORTANT – The 'colour inside' logo on the cover page of this publication indicates that it contains colours which are considered to be useful for the correct understanding of its contents. Users should therefore print this document using a colour printer.

## INTRODUCTION

In recent years, so-called "fuse resistors" have increasingly been used in electrical and electronic applications. The term "fuse resistor", however, which has become established in the market, is misleading. The actual function of a fuse resistor is that of a resistor in an electrical or electronic circuit. Only when an overload of multiple times the rated dissipation occurs can fuse resistors interrupt an electric current. In a wide range between the rated dissipation and the manufacturer's specified breaking dissipation, fuse resistors provide poor or no overcurrent protection. Therefore if they are incorrectly rated and improperly used in an application, this may result in potential risk of fire.

Fuse resistors perform the function of a fuse only within a particular overcurrent range, and, from a technical point of view, must therefore be referred to as "fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection".

Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection can safely interrupt <u>high</u> short-circuit currents, but are not capable of interrupting overload currents.

For safety reasons, they are only used in combination with an accompanying overload current protection device, if overload currents cannot be excluded to occur in the respective application.

# MINIATURE FUSES –

- 7 -

# Part 8: Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection

## 1 Scope

This part of IEC 60127 relates to fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection rated up to AC 500 V and/or DC 500 V for printed circuits and other substrate systems, used for the protection of electric appliances, electronic equipment and component parts thereof, normally intended to be used indoors.

It does not apply to fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection for appliances intended to be used under special conditions, such as in a corrosive or explosive atmosphere.

The object of this part of IEC 60127 is

- a) to establish uniform requirements for fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection so as to protect appliances or parts of appliances in the most suitable way;
- b) to define the performance of the fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection, so as to give guidance to manufacturers of electrical appliances and electronic equipment and to ensure replacement of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection by those of similar dimensions and characteristics;
- c) to establish uniform test methods for fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection, so as to allow verification of the values (for example rated dissipation, functioning characteristic and rated breaking capacity values) specified by the manufacturer.

With exceptions of 3.5 and 3.8 of IEC 60127-1:2023, manufacturers of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection shall ensure on their own responsibility that their products comply with the requirements of the resistor-related standards IEC 60115-1, IEC 60115-4-101<sup>1</sup> and IEC 60115-4-102<sup>1</sup>.

Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection are not intended to be replaced by the end-user of an electrical / electronic appliance.

This part of IEC 60127 applies in addition to the requirements of IEC 60127-1.

## 2 Normative references

The following documents are referred to in the text in such a way that some or all of their content constitutes requirements of this document. For dated references, only the edition cited applies. For undated references, the latest edition of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies.

IEC 60063:2015, *Preferred number series for resistors and capacitors* 

IEC 60068-2-21:2006, Environmental testing – Part 2-21: Tests – Test U: Robustness of terminations and integral mounting devices

IEC 60115-1:2008, Fixed resistors for use in electronic equipment – Part 1: Generic specification

<sup>1</sup> IEC 60115-4-101 and IEC 60115-4-102 have been withdrawn.

**REDLINE VERSION** 

IEC 60115-4-101:1995, Fixed resistors for use in electronic equipment – Part 4: Detail specification: Fixed power wirewound resistors with solderable axial wire leads – Stability class 5%. Assessment level E

IEC 60115-4-102:1995, Fixed resistors for use in electronic equipment – Part 4: Detail specification: Fixed power wirewound resistors with solderable axial wire leads – Stability class 1 % – Assessment level E

IEC 60127-1:2006, *Miniature fuses – Part 1: Definitions for miniature fuses and general requirements for miniature fuse-links* IEC 60127-1:2006/AMD1:2011 IEC 60127-1:2006/AMD2:2015

IEC 60194:2015, Printed board design, manufacture and assembly – Terms and definitions

IEC 60664-1:2007, Insulation coordination for equipment within low-voltage systems – Part 1: *Principles, requirements and tests* 

IEC 60695-2-12:2010, Fire hazard testing – Part 2-12: Glowing/hot-wire based test methods – Glow-wire flammability index (GWFI) test method for materials

IEC 60695-2-13:2010, Fire hazard testing – Part 2-13: Glowing/hot-wire based test methods – Glow-wire ignition temperature (GWIT) test method for materials

IEC 60695-4:2012, Fire hazard testing – Part 4: Terminology concerning fire tests for electrotechnical products

IEC 61249-2-7:2002, Materials for printed boards and other interconnecting structures – Part 2-7: Reinforced base materials clad and unclad – Epoxide woven E-glass laminated sheet of defined flammability (vertical burning test), copper-clad

# CONTENTS

FC	FOREWORD					
IN	INTRODUCTION					
1	Scop	e	7			
2	Norm	native references	7			
3	Term	s and definitions	8			
4		eral requirements				
5		dard ratings				
		0				
6		ing				
7		eral notes on tests				
	7.1	Atmospheric conditions for testing				
	7.2	Type tests				
	7.3	Fuse-bases for tests				
	7.3.1					
	7.3.2	-	12			
	7.3.3	Through-hole mounting of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	13			
	7.3.4	•				
	7.4	Nature of supply				
8		nsions and construction				
Ŭ	8.1	Dimensions	-			
	8.2	Construction				
	8.3	Terminations				
	8.3.1					
	8.3.2					
	8.4	Alignment and configuration of terminations				
	8.5	Soldered joints				
	8.6	Solderability of terminations				
	8.7	Resistance to soldering heat				
9	Elect	rical requirements				
-		Resistance value				
	9.2	Functioning characteristic at the minimum breaking dissipation				
	9.2.1					
	9.2.2	-				
	9.2.3					
	9.2.4	•				
	9.3	Rated breaking capacity				
	9.3.1					
	9.3.2	Criteria for satisfactory performance	17			
	9.3.3	Insulation resistance	18			
	9.3.4	Dielectric strength	18			
	9.4	Endurance tests				
	9.5	Maximum sustained dissipation	18			
	9.6	Pulse tests				
	9.7	Temperature of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection	18			
	9.8	Operating overvoltage	18			
Bi	Bibliography					

IEC 60127-8:2018+AMD1:2024 CSV - 3 - © IEC 2024	FINAL VERSION
Figure 1 – Test board for through-hole mount fuse resistors with particle protection	
Figure 2 – Test board for surface mount fuse resistors with particular o protection	
Figure 3 – Test fuse-base	24
Figure 4 – Bending jig for surface mount fuse resistors with particular or protection	
Figure 5 – Test circuit for the tests according to 9.3	25
Table 1 – Creepage distances and clearances (absolute minimum value	es) 14
Table 2 – Test voltages for dielectric strength	
Table 3 – Testing schedule for individual dissipation ratings	20

## INTERNATIONAL ELECTROTECHNICAL COMMISSION

# MINIATURE FUSES -

#### Part 8: Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection

## FOREWORD

- 1) The International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) is a worldwide organization for standardization comprising all national electrotechnical committees (IEC National Committees). The object of IEC is to promote international co-operation on all questions concerning standardization in the electrical and electronic fields. To this end and in addition to other activities, IEC publishes International Standards, Technical Specifications, Technical Reports, Publicly Available Specifications (PAS) and Guides (hereafter referred to as "IEC Publication(s)"). Their preparation is entrusted to technical committees; any IEC National Committee interested in the subject dealt with may participate in this preparatory work. International, governmental and non-governmental organizations liaising with the IEC also participate in this preparation. IEC collaborates closely with the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) in accordance with conditions determined by agreement between the two organizations.
- The formal decisions or agreements of IEC on technical matters express, as nearly as possible, an international consensus of opinion on the relevant subjects since each technical committee has representation from all interested IEC National Committees.
- 3) IEC Publications have the form of recommendations for international use and are accepted by IEC National Committees in that sense. While all reasonable efforts are made to ensure that the technical content of IEC Publications is accurate, IEC cannot be held responsible for the way in which they are used or for any misinterpretation by any end user.
- 4) In order to promote international uniformity, IEC National Committees undertake to apply IEC Publications transparently to the maximum extent possible in their national and regional publications. Any divergence between any IEC Publication and the corresponding national or regional publication shall be clearly indicated in the latter.
- 5) IEC itself does not provide any attestation of conformity. Independent certification bodies provide conformity assessment services and, in some areas, access to IEC marks of conformity. IEC is not responsible for any services carried out by independent certification bodies.
- 6) All users should ensure that they have the latest edition of this publication.
- 7) No liability shall attach to IEC or its directors, employees, servants or agents including individual experts and members of its technical committees and IEC National Committees for any personal injury, property damage or other damage of any nature whatsoever, whether direct or indirect, or for costs (including legal fees) and expenses arising out of the publication, use of, or reliance upon, this IEC Publication or any other IEC Publications.
- 8) Attention is drawn to the Normative references cited in this publication. Use of the referenced publications is indispensable for the correct application of this publication.
- 9) IEC draws attention to the possibility that the implementation of this document may involve the use of (a) patent(s). IEC takes no position concerning the evidence, validity or applicability of any claimed patent rights in respect thereof. As of the date of publication of this document, IEC had not received notice of (a) patent(s), which may be required to implement this document. However, implementers are cautioned that this may not represent the latest information, which may be obtained from the patent database available at https://patents.iec.ch or www.iso.org/patents. IEC shall not be held responsible for identifying any or all such patent rights.

This consolidated version of the official IEC Standard and its amendment has been prepared for user convenience.

IEC 60127-8 edition 1.1 contains the first edition (2018-06) [documents 32C/542/FDIS and 32C/546/RVD] and its amendment 1 (2024-07) [documents 32C/638/FDIS and 32C/642/RVD].

This Final version does not show where the technical content is modified by amendment 1. A separate Redline version with all changes highlighted is available in this publication.

International Standard IEC 60127-8 has been prepared by subcommittee SC 32C: Miniature fuses, of IEC technical committee 32: Fuses

- 5 -

This first edition of IEC 60127-8 cancels and replaces IEC PAS 60127-8:2014.

This international standard is to be used in conjunction with IEC 60127-1.

This document has been drafted in accordance with the ISO/IEC Directives, Part 2.

A list of all parts in the IEC 60127 series, published under the general title *Miniature fuses*, can be found on the IEC website.

The committee has decided that the contents of this document and its amendment will remain unchanged until the stability date indicated on the IEC website under webstore.iec.ch in the data related to the specific document. At this date, the document will be

- reconfirmed,
- withdrawn, or
- revised.

### INTRODUCTION

In recent years, so-called "fuse resistors" have increasingly been used in electrical and electronic applications. The term "fuse resistor", however, which has become established in the market, is misleading. The actual function of a fuse resistor is that of a resistor in an electrical or electronic circuit. Only when an overload of multiple times the rated dissipation occurs can fuse resistors interrupt an electric current. In a wide range between the rated dissipation and the manufacturer's specified breaking dissipation, fuse resistors provide poor or no overcurrent protection. Therefore if they are incorrectly rated and improperly used in an application, this may result in potential risk of fire.

Fuse resistors perform the function of a fuse only within a particular overcurrent range, and, from a technical point of view, must therefore be referred to as "fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection".

Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection can safely interrupt short-circuit currents, but are not capable of interrupting overload currents.

For safety reasons, they are only used in combination with an accompanying overload current protection device, if overload currents cannot be excluded to occur in the respective application.

# MINIATURE FUSES –

- 7 -

## Part 8: Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection

## 1 Scope

This part of IEC 60127 relates to fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection rated up to AC 500 V and/or DC 500 V for printed circuits and other substrate systems, used for the protection of electric appliances, electronic equipment and component parts thereof, normally intended to be used indoors.

It does not apply to fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection for appliances intended to be used under special conditions, such as in a corrosive or explosive atmosphere.

The object of this part of IEC 60127 is

- a) to establish uniform requirements for fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection so as to protect appliances or parts of appliances in the most suitable way;
- b) to define the performance of the fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection, so as to give guidance to manufacturers of electrical appliances and electronic equipment and to ensure replacement of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection by those of similar dimensions and characteristics;
- c) to establish uniform test methods for fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection, so as to allow verification of the values (for example rated dissipation, functioning characteristic and rated breaking capacity values) specified by the manufacturer.

With exceptions of 3.5 and 3.8 of IEC 60127-1:2023, manufacturers of fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection shall ensure on their own responsibility that their products comply with the requirements of the resistor-related standards IEC 60115-1, IEC 60115-4-101<sup>1</sup> and IEC 60115-4-102<sup>1</sup>.

Fuse resistors with particular overcurrent protection are not intended to be replaced by the end-user of an electrical / electronic appliance.

This part of IEC 60127 applies in addition to the requirements of IEC 60127-1.

## 2 Normative references

The following documents are referred to in the text in such a way that some or all of their content constitutes requirements of this document. For dated references, only the edition cited applies. For undated references, the latest edition of the referenced document (including any amendments) applies.

IEC 60063:2015, *Preferred number series for resistors and capacitors* 

IEC 60068-2-21:2006, Environmental testing – Part 2-21: Tests – Test U: Robustness of terminations and integral mounting devices

IEC 60115-1:2008, Fixed resistors for use in electronic equipment – Part 1: Generic specification

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> IEC 60115-4-101 and IEC 60115-4-102 have been withdrawn.

FINAL VERSION

IEC 60115-4-101:1995, Fixed resistors for use in electronic equipment – Part 4: Detail specification: Fixed power wirewound resistors with solderable axial wire leads – Stability class 5%. Assessment level E

IEC 60115-4-102:1995, Fixed resistors for use in electronic equipment – Part 4: Detail specification: Fixed power wirewound resistors with solderable axial wire leads – Stability class 1 % – Assessment level E

IEC 60127-1:2006, Miniature fuses – Part 1: Definitions for miniature fuses and general requirements for miniature fuse-links IEC 60127-1:2006/AMD1:2011 IEC 60127-1:2006/AMD2:2015

IEC 60194:2015, Printed board design, manufacture and assembly – Terms and definitions

IEC 60664-1:2007, Insulation coordination for equipment within low-voltage systems – Part 1: *Principles, requirements and tests* 

IEC 60695-2-12:2010, Fire hazard testing – Part 2-12: Glowing/hot-wire based test methods – Glow-wire flammability index (GWFI) test method for materials

IEC 60695-2-13:2010, Fire hazard testing – Part 2-13: Glowing/hot-wire based test methods – Glow-wire ignition temperature (GWIT) test method for materials

IEC 60695-4:2012, Fire hazard testing – Part 4: Terminology concerning fire tests for electrotechnical products

IEC 61249-2-7:2002, Materials for printed boards and other interconnecting structures – Part 2-7: Reinforced base materials clad and unclad – Epoxide woven E-glass laminated sheet of defined flammability (vertical burning test), copper-clad